Exhibit A



West Valley Water District

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

With

ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
Section 1.	Term of Agreement	1
Section 2.	Scope and Performance of Services	1
Section 3.	Additional Services and Changes in Services	3
Section 4.	Familiarity with Services and Site	3
Section 5.	Compensation and Payment	4
Section 6.	Required Documentation prior to Performance	5
Section 7.	Project Documents	5
Section 8.	Consultant's Books and Records	5
Section 9.	Status of Consultant	6
Section 10.	Compliance with Applicable Laws	7
Section 11.	Conflicts of Interest	8
Section 12.	Confidential Information; Release of Information	8
Section 13.	Indemnification	9
Section 14.	Insurance	10
Section 15.	Assignment	10
Section 16.	Termination of Agreement	11
Section 17.	Notices	11
Section 18.	General Provisions	12
Exhibit "A"	Task Order	
Exhibit "B"	Key Personnel	
Exhibit "C"	Insurance	

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ("Agreement") effective as of this ______ day of February, 2025 ("Effective Date") is by and between West Valley Water District ("District") and Albert A. Webb Associates ("Consultant"). The District and Consultant may be collectively referred to as the "Parties" and individually as a "Party."

RECITALS

A. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall provide certain services to District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Term of Agreement.

- (a) Subject to subsection (b) below, the term of this Agreement will be for a period of one (1) year commencing on the Effective Date and terminating one (1) year after the Effective Date.
- (b) This Agreement shall renew automatically for continuous one (1) year periods for no more than two (2) additional years, unless either Party, prior to the end of the existing one (1) year period, delivers written notice to the other Party, that the Agreement shall not be extended.
- (c) If a Task Order (as defined herein) is in effect at the expiration of the term of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement will automatically extend until Consultant completes the services under said Task Order, or until the Agreement is otherwise terminated, as set forth herein.

Section 2. Scope and Performance of Services.

- 2.1 (a) District may, from time to time, by written instructions from the District's General Manager or Assistant General Manager, or their designee, ("Authorized Representative") issue task orders ("Task Orders") to the Consultant. The Task Order shall be in such form and content as shall be set forth on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. The Task Order shall set forth: (1) the scope of services to be performed by Consultant; (2) the compensation to be paid to Consultant; and (3) the time to complete the Task Order. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all such Task Orders.
 - (b) For each Task Order, Consultant shall confer, as requested, with District representatives to review progress of work elements, adherence to work schedule, coordination of work, scheduling of review and resolution of problems which may develop.

- 2.2 Consultant will furnish all of the labor, technical, administrative, professional and other personnel, all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, transportation, office space and facilities, and all tests, testing and analyses, calculation, and all other means whatsoever, except as otherwise expressly specified in this Agreement, necessary or proper to perform and complete the services required of Consultant under this Agreement.
- 2.3 Consultant's designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its behalf and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of services under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein ("Key Personnel"). Consultant shall not substitute or remove Key Personnel without the prior written consent of District.
- 2.4 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the services required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional manner. Notwithstanding Section 3 below, in the event Consultant utilizes the services of subcontractors or sub-consultants, Consultant assumes sole and complete responsibility for the performance of the subcontractor or sub-consultant to the specifications provided hereunder for Consultant's work, and no adjustment will be made to Consultant's requirements under this Agreement for timely completion of services, complete performance of services, or delivery of products or deliverables in a timely fashion, and no adjustment will be made to performance deadlines, or compensation due to Consultant, due to or arising from issues Consultant may have with any subcontractor or sub-consultant. Consultant will at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services described in this Agreement. In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services similar to those required of Consultant under this Agreement.

Consultant warrants it will perform its services, as more particularly described in this Agreement and each Task Order in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and current standards of care and diligence normally practiced by members of the profession currently practicing under conditions of a similar nature. Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.

2.5 Neither District nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this Agreement for delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party. For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include a Force Majeure Event. A Force

Majeure Event shall mean an event that materially affects the Consultant's performance and is one or more of the following: (1) Acts of God or other natural disasters occurring at the project site; (2) terrorism or other acts of a public enemy; (3) orders of governmental authorities (including, without limitation, unreasonable and unforeseeable delay in the issuance of permits or approvals by governmental authorities that are required for the services); and (4) pandemics, epidemics or quarantine restrictions. For purposes of this section, "orders of governmental authorities," includes ordinances, emergency proclamations and orders, rules to protect the public health, welfare and safety. Should such a Force Majeure Event occur, the nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this Agreement. Delays shall not entitle Consultant to any additional compensation regardless of the Party responsible for the delay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may still terminate this Agreement in accordance with the termination provisions of this Agreement.

Section 3. Additional Services and Changes in Services

- 3.1 Consultant will not be compensated for any services rendered in connection with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of those set forth in the Task Orders unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by District.
- 3.2 If Consultant believes that additional services are needed to complete a Task Order, Consultant will provide the Authorized Representative with written notification describing the proposed additional services, the reasons for such services, and a detailed proposal regarding cost.
- 3.3 District may order changes to a Task Order, consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, and the compensation to be paid Consultant will be adjusted accordingly. All such changes must be authorized in writing and executed by Consultant and District. The cost or credit to District resulting from changes in a Task Order will be determined by the written agreement between the Parties.

Section 4. Familiarity with Services and Site.

- **4.1** By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant shall, prior to undertaking a Task Order:
 - (a) investigate and consider the services to be performed;
 - (b) carefully consider how and within what time frame the services should be performed;

- (c) understand the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending performance of the services under a Task Order; and
- (d) possesses all licenses required under local, state or federal law to perform the services contemplated by a Task Order and maintain all required licenses during the performance of such Task Order.
- 4.2 If services involve work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant has or will investigate the site and will be fully acquainted with the conditions there existing, before commencing its services under a Task Order. Should Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions that may materially affect the performance of services, Consultant will immediately inform District of such fact and will not proceed except at Consultant's own risk until written instructions are received from the District.

Section 5. Compensation and Payment.

- 5.1 In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant under this Agreement and all Task Orders issued hereunder exceed the sum of the Task Orders. Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, District agrees to pay Consultant the amounts shown in a Task Order.
- 5.2 Consultant shall furnish District monthly with an original invoice for all services performed and expenses incurred under a Task Order during the preceding month in accordance with the fee schedule set forth in the Task Order. The invoice must detail charges by the following categories: labor (by subcategory), reimbursable costs, subcontractor contracts and miscellaneous expenses. The invoice must list, as applicable, the hours worked and hourly rates for each personnel category, the tasks performed, the percentage of the task completed during the billing period, the cumulative percentage completed for each task, and the total cost of the services.
- 5.3 District will independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with this Agreement and the Task Order. In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice will be approved and paid. In the event any charges or expenses are disputed by District, the original invoice will be returned by District to Consultant for correction and resubmission.
- 5.4 Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by Consultant that are disputed by District, District will use its best efforts to cause Consultant to be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant's invoice.

5.5 No payment or partial payment to Consultant shall constitute acceptance of any work completed by Consultant or waive any claims by the District for any reason whatsoever.

Section 6. Required Documentation Prior to Performance.

- **6.1** Consultant will not perform any services under this Agreement until:
 - (a) Consultant furnishes proof of insurance ("Insurance") as required under Exhibit "C" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein; and
 - (b) Consultant provides District with a Taxpayer Identification Number.
- 6.2 The District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by Consultant in advance of receiving written authorization to proceed for each Task Order, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at Consultant's own risk.

Section 7. Project Documents.

- 7.1 All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer programs, files and other documents (collectively, "Project Documents") prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of providing services under this Agreement will become the sole property of District and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by District without the permission of Consultant. Consultant will take such steps as are necessary to perfect or protect the ownership interest of District in such Project Documents. Upon completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall turn over to District all such original Project Documents in its possession; provided, however, that Consultant may retain copies of Project Documents.
- 7.2 Except as necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement, no Project Documents prepared under this Agreement, will be released by Consultant to any other person or entity without District's prior written approval. All press releases, including graphic display information to be published, must be approved and distributed solely by District, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by District.

Section 8. Consultant's Books and Records.

8.1 Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or relating to Consultant's performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or

records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements charged to District under this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records must be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and must be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Consultant under this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records must be maintained for three (3) years following the final payment for each Task Order.

- 8.2 Any and all records or documents required to be maintained by this section must be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during regular business hours, upon written request by District or its designated representatives. Copies of such documents or records must be provided directly to District for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and records must be made available at Consultant's address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement.
- 8.3 Where District has reason to believe that any of the documents or records required to be maintained by this section may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of Consultant's business, District may, by written request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to a person or entity mutually agreed upon and that such documents and records thereafter be maintained by such person or entity at Consultant's expense. Access to such documents and records shall be granted to District, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized representatives.

Section 9. Status of Consultant.

- 9.1 Consultant is and will at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not an officer or employee of District. Consultant has no authority to bind District in any manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against District, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred in writing by District.
- 9.2 The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant will at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control. Neither District, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of District, will have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, subcontractors or subconsultants, employees or agents, except as provided in this Agreement. Consultant warrants that it will not at any time or in any manner represent that Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, employees or agents are in

any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of District.

9.3 Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant's officers, employees or agents, will obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to District's employees. Consultant expressly waives any claim to any such rights or benefits.

Section 10. Compliance with Applicable Laws and California Labor Code.

- **10.1** Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this Agreement.
- 10.2 Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 1720 et seg. and 1770 et seg., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). If the services are being performed as part of an applicable "public works" or "maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is \$1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. It shall be mandatory upon the Consultant and all subconsultants to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, which include but are not limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code Sections 1771, 1774 and 1775), employment of apprentices (Labor Code Section 1777.5), certified payroll records (Labor Code Sections 1771.4 and 1776), hours of labor (Labor Code Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment of contractors and subcontractors (Labor Code Section 1777.1). The requirement to submit certified payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4 shall not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small project exemption specified in Labor Code Section 1771.4.
- 10.3 If the services are being performed as part of an applicable "public works" or "maintenance" project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the Consultant and all subconsultants performing such services must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations. Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the Agreement and require the same of any subconsultants, as applicable. This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. It shall be Consultant's sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor registration requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 shall not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small project exemption specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1.
- 10.4 This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. It shall be Consultant's sole

responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements. Any stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor that affect Consultant's performance of services, including any delay, shall be Consultant's sole responsibility. Any delay arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall be considered Consultant caused delay and shall not be compensable by the District. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out of stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor.

Section 11. Conflicts of Interest.

Consultant covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal nor employee of its firm, has or will acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, that would conflict in any manner with the interests of District or that would in any way hinder Consultant's performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant further covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal or employee of its firm will make, participate in the making, or in any way attempt to use the position of Consultant to influence any decision of the District in which Consultant knows or has reason to know that Consultant, or any officer, principal or employee of Consultant has a financial interest as defined in Government Code section 87103.

Section 12. Confidential Information; Release of Information.

- 12.1 All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in performance of this Agreement will be considered confidential to the full extent permitted by law, unless such information is in the public domain or already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than District without prior written authorization from an Authorized Representative, except as may be required by law.
- 12.2 Consultant, its officers, employees, or agents, shall not, without prior written authorization from an Authorized Representative or unless requested by the District counsel, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this Agreement. Response to a subpoena or court order will not be considered "voluntary" provided Consultant gives District notice of such court order or subpoena.
- 12.3 If Consultant, or any officer, employee, or agent of Consultant, provides any information or work product (including Project Documents) in violation of this Agreement, then District shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, including attorneys' fees related to any unauthorized disclosure by consultant or, caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant's conduct.

12.4 Consultant shall promptly notify District should, Consultant, its officers, employees, or agents be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement and the services performed under this Agreement. District retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with District and to provide District with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by District to control, direct, or rewrite such response.

Section 13. Indemnification.

- **13.1** Consultant covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, any injury suffered as a result of Consultant's services shall be the sole responsibility of Consultant and its successors and assigns and District shall not be liable to Consultant, or any other person or persons whatsoever for any such injury, loss or damage to persons or property unless caused by the sole negligence or intentional acts of District or its Representatives (as solely defined below).
- **13.2** To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold District, its officers, directors and Representatives ("District Indemnitees") harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, liabilities, debts, demands, suits, actions, causes of action, obligations, proceedings, damages, judgments, liens and expenses of whatever nature, including attorneys' fees and disbursements (collectively, "Claims") which may be made against the District Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with (a) the retention by District of Consultant's services; (b) the performance of or failure to perform, the services covered by this Agreement which is caused or occasioned by any act, action, neglect on the part of Consultant, or its Representatives, in the performance of this Agreement and the services provided under this Agreement; (c) the death and/or injury to any person or damage to any property (real or personal) and/or economic loss which may be caused or is claimed to have been caused, by the negligence, act or omission of Consultant or its Representatives; (d) any violation or alleged violation by Consultant of any law or regulation now or hereafter enacted; and (e) any breach by Consultant of its obligations under this Agreement. The foregoing indemnity shall not apply to the extent any such Claims are ultimately established by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District Indemnitees or any of them. District shall make all decisions with respect to its representation in any legal proceeding concerning this section. If Consultant fails to do so, District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to defend the Claim and charge all of the direct or incidental costs of such defense, including attorneys' fees and costs, to Consultant and to recover the same from Consultant. The term "Representatives" shall mean employees, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors or any other persons directly

or indirectly employed by any one of the foregoing or reasonably under the control of any of the foregoing or for whose acts any of the foregoing may be liable.

13.3 If Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and/or hold harmless arises out of Consultant's performance of "design professional" services (as that term is defined under Civil Code section 2782.8), then, and only to the extent required by Civil Code section 2782.8, which is fully incorporated herein, Consultant's indemnification obligation shall be limited to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, and, upon Consultant obtaining a final adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction, Consultant's liability for such claim, including the cost to defend, shall not exceed the Consultant's proportionate percentage of fault.

Section 14. Insurance.

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement the insurance coverages listed in Exhibit "C." All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by District as to form and content. These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by an Authorized Representative.

Section 15. Assignment.

- 15.1 The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for this Agreement. District has an interest in the qualifications of and capability of the persons and entities that will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant may not assign or transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of Consultant's duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of District. The District can withhold its approval/consent in its sole and absolute discretion. Any attempted assignment will be null and void, and will constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling District to any and all remedies at law or in equity, including summary termination of this Agreement.
- 15.2 Consultant must obtain District's prior written approval before utilizing any subcontractors to perform any services under this Agreement, which said approval may be withheld in District's sole and absolute discretion. This written approval must include the identity of the subcontractor and the terms of compensation. Approval by District does not imply any agreement to or endorsement by the District as to the competency or capability of any proposed subcontractor or sub-consultant, and District reserves any and all rights against both Consultant and such subcontractor or sub-consultant, for any failure to perform or other breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement, or the standards of performance defined herein, and no waiver is intended or to be implied by District's approval of any subcontractor or sub-consultant.

Section 16. Termination of Agreement.

- 16.1 District may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by giving ten (10) calendar days written notice of termination to Consultant. In the event such notice is given, Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress.
- 16.2 Upon termination of this Agreement, all property belonging exclusively to District which is in Consultant's possession, including, but not limited to, Project Documents must be returned to District immediately. Consultant shall promptly deliver to District a final invoice for all outstanding services performed and expenses incurred by Consultant as of the date of termination. If said termination occurs prior to completion of any Task Order for which a payment request has not been received, the charge for services performed during such task shall be the reasonable value of such services, based on an amount mutually agreed to by District and Consultant of the portion of such Task Order completed but not paid prior to said termination.
- 16.3 Consultant acknowledges District's right to terminate this Agreement as provided in this section, and hereby waives any and all claims for damages that might otherwise arise from District's termination of this Agreement. District shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for unperformed services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation for termination of work.

Section 17. Notices.

17.1 All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement will be deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective address as follows:

To District: West Valley Water District

855 West Base Line Road

P. O. Box 920 Rialto, CA 92377 Attention: John Thiel General Manager (Tel.) 909-875-1804 (Fax) 909-875-1849

To Consultant: Albert A. Webb Associates

Attention: Bruce Davis, P.E., Senior Vice President Address: 3788 McCray Street, Riverside, CA 92506

Phone Number: (951) 686-1070

Email: bruce.davis@webbassociates.com

** Please send all invoices by:

Email: apinvoices@wvwd.org

or

Mail: West Valley Water District Accounts Payable P.O. Box 190 Rialto, CA 92377

- 17.2 Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by facsimile. If the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first class delivery, or upon delivery if using a major courier service with tracking capabilities.
- **17.3** Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other Party in compliance with this section.

Section 18. General Provisions.

- **18.1 Authority to Execute.** Each Party represents and warrants that all necessary action has been taken by such Party to authorize the undersigned to execute this Agreement and to bind it to the performance of its obligations hereunder.
- **18.2 Binding Effect.** Subject to Section 15, this Agreement is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the Parties, including any subcontractors or sub-consultants of Consultant.
- **18.3 Entire Agreement.** This Agreement and all attachments contain the entire, complete, final and exclusive agreement and understanding of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed in this Agreement and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, between Consultant and District prior to the execution of this Agreement.
- Modification of Agreement. No amendment to or modification of this Agreement will be valid unless made in writing and approved by Consultant and approved in writing by the Board of Directors of the District, or in writing by the General Manager, if such power has been delegated to General Manager. The Parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver will be void.
- **18.5 Facsimile Signatures.** Amendments to this Agreement will be considered executed when the signature of a Party is delivered by facsimile

- transmission. Such facsimile signature will have the same effect as an original signature.
- 18.6 Waiver. Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant. Waiver by any Party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other provision, or a waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement. Acceptance by District of any services by Consultant will not constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- **18.7 Interpretation.** This Agreement will be interpreted, construed and governed according to the laws of the State of California. Each Party has had the opportunity to review this Agreement with legal counsel. The Agreement will be construed simply, as a whole, and in accordance with its fair meaning, and without resort to rules regarding draftsmanship. It will not be interpreted strictly for or against either Party.
- 18.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties shall: (a) promptly negotiate a substitute for the provisions which shall to the greatest extent legally permissible, effect the intent of the Parties in the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, and (b) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining provisions of this Agreement as may be necessary in addition to and in conjunction with subsection (a) above to give effect to the intent of the Parties without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. To the extent the Parties are unable to negotiate such changes, substitutions or additions as set forth in the preceding sentence, and the intent of the Parties with respect to the essential terms of the Agreement may be carried out without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions, the balance of this Agreement shall not be affected, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions did not exist.
- 18.9 Venue. The Parties agree any action or proceeding to enforce or relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the federal court located in Riverside County, California or state court located in San Bernardino County, California and the Parties hereto consent to the exercise of personal jurisdiction over them by such courts for purposes of any such action or proceeding.
- 18.10 Disputes. If any disputes should arise between the Parties concerning the work to be done under this Agreement, the payments to be made, or the manner of accomplishment of the work, Consultant shall nevertheless proceed to perform the work as directed by District pending settlement of the dispute.

- **18.11 Cooperation.** Consultant shall cooperate in the performance of work with District and all other agents.
- **18.12 Time of Essence.** Time shall be of the essence as to all dates and times of performance contained in this Agreement.
- **18.13 Counterparts.** This Agreement may be signed and delivered in any number of counter parts, each of which, when signed and delivered, shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same Agreement.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed effective as of the day and year first above written.

DISTRICT:
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, a public agency of the State of California
By John Thiel, General Manager
CONSULTANT:
ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES
Ву
Name
its

EXHIBIT A

TASK ORDER



TASK ORDER NO. _1__

This Task	Order ("Task	Order	") is exe	cuted t	this		day of			<u>,</u> 2023
by and between	West Valley	Water	District,	a pub	lic	agency	of the	State	of	California
("District") and			("C	onsult	ant"	').				

RECITALS

A.	On or about,	2023	District	and	Consultant	executed	that
	certain Agreement for Professional	Service	es ("Agre	eeme	ent").		

- B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, for the provision of certain services by Consultant.
- C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall render certain services to the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit "1" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.
- 2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit "2" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit "2," unless additional compensation is approved in writing by the District.
- 3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit "1" in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit "3" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed from the District. District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at Consultant's own risk.
- 4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order. As such, the terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed effective as of the day and year first above written.

DISTRICT:
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, a public agency of the State of California
John Thiel, General Manager
CONSULTANT:
Vendor Name Here
Ву
Name
Its

EXHIBIT "1"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES



EXHIBIT "2"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

COMPENSATION



EXHIBIT "3"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. __1_

SCHEDULE



EXHIBIT B

KEY PERSONNEL

Consultant's designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its behalf and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of services under this Agreement are:

Bruce A. Davis, P.E., Senior Vice President

Siming Zhang, P.E., Senior Engineer

EXHIBIT C

INSURANCE

INSURANCE

A. **General Requirements**. Before commencing the performance of services under this Agreement, and at all other times this Agreement is effective, Consultant must procure and maintain the following types of insurance with coverage limits complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth below:

<u>Type of Insurance</u> <u>Limits (combined single)</u>

Commercial General Liability: \$1,000,000
Business Automobile Liability \$1,000,000
Professional Liability \$1,000,000

Workers Compensation Statutory Requirement

- B. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**. The amount of insurance set forth above must be a combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage for the policy coverage. The insurance must be on an "occurrence" not a "claims made" basis.
- C. **Business Automobile Insurance**. Automobile coverage must be written on forms subject to the written approval of District.
- D. **Professional Liability Insurance**. This coverage must be on an "occurrence" basis, including coverage for contractual liability. The Professional Liability Insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement.
- E. **Workers Compensation**. Consultant must have a State of California approved policy form providing the statutory benefits required by law with employer's liability limits of no less than \$1,000,000 per accident for all covered losses, or Consultant must provide evidence of an approved self-insurance program.
- F. **Additional Insureds**. Each Commercial General Liability Insurance policy and Business Auto Insurance policy must provide that the <u>District</u>, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers are "additional insureds" under the terms of the policy, and must provide that an act or omission of one the insureds will not reduce or avoid coverage to the other insureds.
- G. **Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention**. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions applicable to the insurance policies required under this Agreement must be declared to and approved by District. In no event may any required insurance policy have a deductible, self-insured retention or other similar policy provision in excess of \$50,000 without prior written approval by District in its sole discretion. At the option of District, either the insurer will reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the District's additional insureds or Consultant will procure a bond guaranteeing payment of any losses, damages,

- expenses, costs or settlements up to the amount of such deductibles or self-insured retentions.
- H. **Primary Insurance**. Each of the insurance policies maintained by Consultant under this Agreement must state that such insurance will be deemed "primary" so that any insurance that may be carried by District will be deemed excess to that of Consultant. This endorsement must be reflected on forms as determined by District.
- I. Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements. Prior to commencing any services under this Agreement, Consultant must file with the District certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the existence of all insurance required by this Agreement, along with such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies as may reasonably be required by District. These certificates of insurance and endorsements must be in a form approved by the Legal Counsel. Consultant must maintain current certificates and endorsements on file with District during the term of this Agreement reflecting the existence of all required insurance. Each of the certificates must expressly provide that no material change in the policy, or termination thereof, will be effective except upon 30 days' prior written notice to District by certified mail, return receipt requested. The delivery to District of any certificates of insurance or endorsements that do not comply with the requirements of this Agreement will not waive the District's right to require compliance.
- J. **Insurance Rating**. All insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under this Agreement must be issued by companies licensed by or admitted to conduct insurance business in the State of California by the California Department of Insurance and must have a rating of A or better and Class VII or better by the latest edition of A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide.
- K. Aggregate Limits. The aggregate limits for each insurance policy required under this Agreement must apply separately and solely to the services performed under this Agreement. If the required policies do not have an endorsement providing that the aggregate limit applies separately to the services being performed, or if defense costs are included in the aggregate limit, then the required aggregate limits must be increased to an amount satisfactory to District.
- L. **Waiver of Subrogation Rights**. Consultant and each insurer providing any insurance required by this Agreement must waive all rights of subrogation against District, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, and each insurer must issue a certificate to the District evidencing this waiver of subrogation rights.
- M. **Failure to Maintain Required Insurance**. If Consultant, for any reason, fails to obtain and maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, District may obtain such coverage at Consultant's expense and deduct the cost of such insurance from payments due to Consultant under this Agreement or may terminate the Agreement.

N. **Effect of Coverage**. The existence of the required insurance coverage under this Agreement shall not be deemed to satisfy or limit Consultant's indemnity obligations under this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that the insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this Agreement constitute the minimum coverage and policy limits required. Any insurance proceeds available to District in excess of the limits and coverage required by this Agreement, and which is applicable to a given loss, must be made available to District to compensate it for such losses.

TASK ORDER NO. 1

18 inch Diameter Transmission Main Crossing Freeway I-15 (W21007) – Engineering Support Services During Construction, City of Fontana, County of San Bernardino, California

This Task Order ("Task Order") is executed this	_ day of February, 2025 by and
between West Valley Water District, a public agency of	the State of California ("District")
and Albert A. Webb Associates ("Consultant").	

RECITALS

- A. On or about February _______, 2025 District and Consultant executed that certain Agreement for Professional Services ("Agreement").
- B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, for the provision of certain services provided by Consultant.
- C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall render certain services to the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit "1" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.
- 2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement and this Task Order, District shall pay to Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit "2" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit "2," unless additional compensation is approved in writing by the District.
- 3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit "1" in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit "3" attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed from the District. District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at Consultant's own risk.
- 4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order. As such, the terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed
effective as of the day and year first above written.

DISTRICT:	
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, a public agency of the State of California	
By	
CONSULTANT:	
ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES	
By	
Name	

EXHIBIT "1"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Introduction:

The purpose of the scope of services is to outline the tasks that are necessary to complete 18 inch Diameter Transmission Main Crossing Freeway I-15 (W21007) — Engineering Support Services During Construction, City of Fontana, County of San Bernardino, California per the attached proposal dated February 18, 2025.



Corporate Headquarters

3788 McCray Street Riverside, CA 92506 951.686.1070

Murrieta Office

41391 Kalmia Street #320 Murrieta, CA 92562 951.686.1070 February 18, 2025

Rocky Welborn, P.E.

Director of Engineering
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (WVWD)
855 W. Base Line Rd. | Rialto, CA 92377

RE: 18-inch Dia. Transmission Main Crossing Freeway I-15 (WVWD W21007) - Engineering Support Services During Construction, City of Fontana, County of San Bernardino, CA.

Dear Rocky:

Albert A. WEBB Associates (WEBB) is pleased to provide you with this proposal for Engineering Support Services during construction of the referenced above. Our Project Understanding and Scope of Work (Exhibit "A"), and Compensation for Services (Exhibit "B") are included for your review and consideration.

If you find this proposal acceptable, please notify our office so a contract agreement can be prepared. We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to your firm and look forward to hearing from you. If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please contact us at 951-686-1070.

Sincerely,

ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES

Siming Zhang, PE Senior Engineer

Copy to: Bruce A. Davis, P.E. WEBB

Elizabeth Xiong, P.E.WEBB

Enclosed: Detailed Scope and Fee for Caltrans Monitoring

EXHIBIT "A" PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND SCOPE OF WORK

WVWD plans to construct an 18-inch diameter water transmission pipeline from Lytle Creek Road to Citrus Avenue across Interstate Freeway 15 located approximately 3,350 feet north of Duncan Canyon Road in City of Fontana, San Bernardino County. WVWD will be Construction Manager (CM) and provide inspection of the construction.

Per WVWD's request, we propose following **Engineering Support Services:**

- Task 1 Prepare conformed plans and specifications incorporating all changes during bidding.
- Task 2 Review Contractor's submittals per CM's request for conformance with plan and specifications, and interpretation of contract documents with Contractor as necessary (Budget for 15 each).
- Task 3 Review and Respond to the Request for Information/Request for Clarification (RFIs/RFCs) (Budget for 5 each).
- Task 4 Review and Respond to the Request for Contractor's Change Order (Budget for 3 each).
- Task 5 Design revisions (Budget for 3 revision).
- Task 6 Assist to resolve field issues (Budget for 3 issues including field meetings in person).
- Task 7 Perform monitoring pre-, during and post- jack and bore operation. Coordinate with California Highway Patrol for Traffic Breaks of setting up/removal the monitoring points. Perform needed Traffic Control. See attached details.
- Task 8 Update Caltrans permit application and OSHA underground classifications due to upsize steel casing from 30" dia. to 36" dia.
- Task 9 Prepare record-drawings per redlines provided by CM and submit digital PDF to WVWD.

Expenses

Exclusions

Any work not included must be contracted under a separate contract or as an addendum to this contract.

The work includes, but not limited to,

- Construction Survey and Staking for Caltrans' monitoring. (By Contractor)
- Construction Management (By WVWD)
- Construction Inspection (By WVWD)
- Permit Application and Permit Fees (By WVWD)

EXHIBIT "2"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

COMPENSATION

Task	Description	Cost
1	Prepare conformed plans and specifications	\$2,600.00
2	Review Contractor's submittals (15 Each)	\$10,000.00
3	Respond to RFI's/RFC's (5 Each)	\$4,460.00
4	Respond to Contractor's Change Order (3 Each)	\$2,980.00
5	Design Revisions (3 Each)	\$3,640.00
6	Assist to Resolve Field Issues (5 Each)	\$8,760.00
7	Caltrans' Monitoring including TCP and CHP coordination	\$44,300.00
8	Update Caltrans' permit and OSHA Underground Classifications	\$3,400.00
	Record Drawings	\$2,900.00
	Expenses	\$1,460.00
	Grand Total	\$84,500.00

EXHIBIT "B" COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES

Total fees for services shown in the Scope of Work (Exhibit "A") shall be \$84,500. Charges for services will be billed monthly to Client. The breakdown of our fees is listed below:

ENGINEERING SUPPOT SERVICES

Task 1 - Prepare Conformed Plan and Specifications	\$2,600
Task 2 - Review Submittals (15 Each)	\$10,000
Task 3 - Respond to RFIs/RFCs (5 Each)	\$4,46 0
Task 4 - Respond to Contractor's Change Orders (3 Each)	\$2,980
Task 5 - Design Revisions (3 each)	\$3,640
Task 6 - Assist to Resolve Field Issues (5 each)	\$8,760
Task 7 - Caltrans' Monitoring including TCP and CHP coordination	\$44,300
Task 8 - Update Caltrans' permit and OSHA Underground Classifications	\$3,400
Task 9 - Record Drawings	\$2,900
Expenses	\$1,460
SUBTOTAL	\$84,500

Task budgets are estimates and may be used interchangeably as needed but not to exceed the budget total. Any additional services requested outside this scope will be provided under separate contracts for additional fees. Invoices will be submitted monthly based on the percentage of work completed. All invoices shall be due and payable upon receipt. If invoices remain unpaid after 30 days, work on the project may cease and interest of 1.5% per month shall be charged on unpaid balances.

Expenses are estimated as time/material item - The Charges for deliveries, printing, copying, mileage, postage, outside services, and for coordination of other services not specifically listed in the scope of work (Reimbursable Expenses), will be billed on a time and material basis, in accordance with our Schedule of Fees. Checking and/or filing fees are not included in this contract, and shall be paid by the client directly to the appropriate governmental agency.

This proposal and budget are valid for 60 days from the date of the proposal.

Section 1 SURVEY & MAPPING SCOPE OF WORK

This scope of work is to provide survey monitoring for the proposed jack and bore under Interstate 15 Freeway, as shown on the 18-Inch Transmission Main Crossing Ontario I-15 Freeway from Citrus Ave to Lytle Creek Road plans dated 07/29/2024. For the purposes of this proposal, the following assumptions have been made:

- 1. All survey monitroing work will be done under the Contractor's Caltrans Encroachment Permit.
- 2. Traffic Control will be provided by WEBB.
- 3. Traffic Breaks will be coordinated by WEBB,
- 4. 10 working days have been included for the installation of the Steel Casing (Jack & Bore). Additional days needed for installation will be billed on a "Time & Material" basis in accordance with our attached scheudel of fees, and subject to additional compensation.

WEBB will perform the following Scope of Services:

1.1 Survey Monitoring per Caltrans TR-0151

- Establish horizontal and vertical control.
- Set monitoring points per Detail 1 Caltrans TR-0151 Settlement Monitoring Plan.
- Measure locations at:
 - Start of Work;
 - Every 2-hours continuously through the project, during actual construction;
 - Upon completion of the project;
 - and, Every 2-months, during a 6-month period after the date of completion.
- Make surveys available to Caltrans, WVWD, & Contractor within 24-hours of measurement.
- Coordinate with California Highway Patrol for Traffic Breaks, if necessary (fees, if any, shall be paid by the Contractor or WVWD.

Deliverable

• Monitoring Report with Exhibit noting reference points, with elevation and time.

Note: This scope of work does not include obtaining a Caltrans Encroachment Permit, setting monitoring rods (if required), or providing traffic control.

At the preconstruction meeting with Caltrans, we recommend discussing the requirement to monitor in the center of the freeway due to safety concerns and the number of traffic breaks that would be required by CHP, to see if this can be eliminated. WEBB's fee does not include this task.

Additional Services

Services that are not specifically identified herein as services to be performed by WEBB are considered Additional Services for the purposes of this proposal. The client may request that WEBB perform services which are additional services. WEBB will perform such additional services upon execution of an amendment to this Agreement setting forth the scope, schedule, and fee for such additional services.

Section 2 Compensation for Services

Total fees for services shown in the Scope of Work will be billed on a "Time & Material" basis, in accordance with our attached fee schedule, for an amount not to exceed **\$44,300**, without prior authorization from the client.

This proposal and budget are valid for 60 days from date of proposal.

Task budgets are estimates and may be used interchangeably as needed but not to exceed the Total amount indicated above without authorization. Any additional services requested outside this scope will be provided under separate contract addenda for additional fees. Invoices will be submitted monthly based on the percentage of work completed. All invoices shall be due and payable upon receipt. If invoices remain unpaid after 30 days, work on project may cease and interest of 1.5% per month shall be charged on unpaid balances.

Charges for printing, copying, mileage, postage, outside services, and for coordination or other services not specifically listed in the scope of work (Reimbursable Expenses), will be billed on a time and material basis, in accordance with our Schedule of Fees. Agency checking and/or filing fees are not included in this contract and shall be paid by the client directly to the appropriate governmental agency.

EXHIBIT "3"

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

SCHEDULE

Schedule to be determined by District staff.